arth Negotiations Bulletin
"AReporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/sp12/

Vol. 12 No. 132  Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (11SD)

Monday, 12 June 2000

HIGHLIGHTSFROM FCCC SB-12
INFORMAL MEETINGS
FRIDAY-SATURDAY, 9-10 JUNE 2000

Delegatesto the informal meetings met to conclude their work
ahead of the twelfth sessions of the FCCC subsidiary bodies (SB-
12). Informal meetingswere convened on: compliance; guidelines
under Protocol Articles’5 (methodological issues), 7 (communica-
tion of information) and 8 (review of information); capacity
building; land use, land-use change and forestry; policiesand
measures; and FCCC Article 4.8 and 4.9 and Protocol Article 3.14
(edverse effects).

INFORMAL MEETINGS

COMPLIANCE: On 9 June, delegates continued consider-
ation of the Co-Chairs' Elements of a Compliance System for the
Kyoto Protocol. On COP/MOP, Co-Chair Slade said the proposals
reflected the degree of political intervention Partieswould allow in
the compliance process. NEW ZEALAND and the EU said the
COP/MOP wasthe central policy-making body, but should not
directly intervenein aspecific case by taking over thejudicial/
legal body’sfunctions. SAUDI ARABIA stressed the COP/MOP's
central roleand said it would not only accept the report of the
compliance body, but could also modify that body’s decisions.
CANADA, withNEW ZEALAND, said thiswould paliticize the
process and that thelegal appreciation should beleft to the compli-
ance body. AUSTRALIA said the COP/MOP could have afinal
say on manifestly unjust decisions.

On China’'s proposal to include anew section on theimplica-
tionsof Article 18 (non-compliance), the US said an amendment
would be needed if binding consequences were to be adopted as
part of the compliance system. CHINA cautioned against creating
two groupsof Partiesthat had ratified the Protocol : one group with,
and the other without, the compliance procedure. The US said the
amendment could be addressed when commitmentsfor the second
budget period were considered.

GUIDELINESUNDER PROTOCOL ARTICLES5,7& 8:
Subgroup on Article5.1 (national systems): On 9 June, dele-
gates worked to remove three remaining brackets on the second
draft Guidelinesfor National Systemsfor the Estimation of
Anthropogenic Greenhouse Gas Emissions by Sourcesand
Removalsby Sinksunder Article 5.1. On Applicability, delegates
sought acceptable language on mandatory and non-mandatory
provisionsin the Guidelines. On the EU proposal to insert two
paragraphs on monitoring of emissionsof legal entitiesand/or
projectsunder Articles 6 and 17 under national systems, delegates
agreed to acompromise proposal by CANADA for anew para
graph under Characteristicsthat would refer to relevant IPCC

guidelinesand COP or COP/MOP decisions. On 10 June, the
subgroup resolved all outstanding editorial issuesand approvedthe
revised guidelines.

Subgroup on Articles5.2 (adjustments) and 8 (review of
information): On 9 June, delegates continued consideration of the
EU proposal on Classification of Inventory Problemsin the guide-
linesunder Article 8, focusing onissues/problemswith direct
implicationson thetotal aggregated inventory estimate or trend.
Differing viewswere expressed asto whether any failureto follow
the good practice principles was adjustable. NORWAY, supported
by the EU, highlighted the linkages between the adjustment and
compliance processes. NEW ZEALAND suggested that the final
report of the expert review team should includetherationalefor the
adjustment and identification of stepsthe Party concerned could
takein order to address the underlying causes of the inventory
problem. Co-Chair Penman noted consensus among del egates that
adjustmentswere “agood thing” and that they could belimitedin
two ways: as part of the review processand, for practical reasons,
intime.

CAPACITY BUILDING: On 9 June, delegates heard presen-
tations by the Global Environment Facility (GEF) on the Climate
Development Initiative (CDI) and considered capacity building in
non-Annex | countries.

Avani Vaish, GEF, said the CDI isan 18-month effort by GEF
and UNDPin 3 phases: an assessment of country-level capacity
needs; preparation of acomprehensive study to meet those needs;
and devel opment of an action plan. John Hoff, UNDP, defined
capacity development asthe ability of individualsand institutions
to set and realize goal's, and said it isinfluenced by the broader
context of theinstitutions, including policy and regulatory frame-
works.

Delegates heard brief reports by regional experts. Issuesraised
included: lack of financial resources; inefficient management of
human resources and information; inability to retain human
capacity; and alow level of economic, managerial and communi-
cation skills. On possible el ements for adraft framework for
capacity building, several delegates stressed the need for capacity
building to be country-driven. The G-77/CHINA stressed that
capacity building be a continuous, integrative and comprehensive
process implemented within a specific time frame and based on
country priorities. The US stressed the need to work on in-country
capacities, build strong partnershipswith local stakeholdersand
incorporate capacity building in national strategies.

Ontheroleof ingtitutions, several delegatescalled for clear
guidance to the GEF to ensure adequate funding for capacity
building initiatives.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Angela Churie <angela@iisd.org>, Jon Hanks <jon.hanks@iiiee.lu.se>, Lavanya
Rajamani <lavanya@iisd.org>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <chris@iisd.org> and Juliette Voinov <cedrickohler@email.msn.com>. The Digital

Editors are Andrei Henry <andrei @iisd.org> and Ken Tong <ken@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Director is
Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada
(through CIDA and DFAIT), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department
for International Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-ENV). General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is provided by the German Federal
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of
Environment of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Finland, the Government of
Australia, and BP Amoco. Logistical support has been provided at this meeting by the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba
R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders.
Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this
material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can be found on the Linkages
WWW server at http://www.iisd.callinkages/. The satelliteimage wastaken above Bonn ©2000 TheLiving Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth
Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to the Managing Director at <kimo@iisd.org>.




Monday, 12 June 2000

Vol. 12 No. 132 Page 2

The G-77/CHINA said national communications should bethe
main source of information to monitor the effectiveness of capacity
building. AOSIS drew attention to the Barbados Programme of
Action and emphasized regional effortsin addressing capacity
building needs.

POLICIESAND MEASURES: On 9 June, Chair Dovland
introduced text for possible draft SBSTA-12 conclusions and
preliminary elements of adraft decision for COP-6 based on recent
discussionsand submissions by Parties. The draft conclusions
included a SBSTA recommendation that work on sharing experi-
ences and information continue, in particul ar through aworkshop
in 2001. Thedraft decision stated, inter alia, that this process
should lead to afurther elaboration of the guidelinesunder Article
7.2 (national communications) and enable ademonstration of
progress by 2005, in the context of Article 3.2 (demonstrable
progress).

The EU supported moving forward by exchanging viewson
both texts. Noting the lack of timeto consider this matter, the G-77/
CHINA objected to consideration of elements of adraft decision.
SAUDI ARABIA added that it was premature to consider a deci-
sion before holding another workshop involving more devel oping
countries, and highlighted other pressing issuesin thelead-up to
COP-6. He said it would be more appropriate to consider conclu-
sionsthat expressed appreciation for the recent workshop in
Copenhagen and called for another workshop in 2001.

Chair Dovland said SBSTA-12 would consider thisissue, and
noted agreement on aworkshop in 2001. AOSISsaid it looked
forward to extensive discussion on thismatter during SBSTA-12.

LULUCF: On 9 and 10 June, delegates met to consider the
IPCC Special Report on LULUCEF, with thelead authors
responding to requestsfor clarification. Onimplications of Article
3.3 (afforestation, restoration and deforestation — ARD) and 3.4
(additional activities), delegates considered, inter alia: ARD defi-
nitions, accounting scenarios, and how to combine them; issues
rel ated to separating “ human-induced” activities, “direct human-
induced” activities, and natural variability; improved management
versus land-use change; the basis of and need for adefinition of
“forest”; the carbon accounting schemes and their relationship to
atmospheric carbon; implications for the harvest-regeneration
cycle; carbon stock changes versus fluxes; baselines and addition-
ality; non-CO2 gases; incentivesfor sequestration where no land-
use change occurs, and for the capture of co-benefits; and theintent
behind the need for each Party to establishitslevel of carbon stocks
in 1990 asrequired under Article 3.4.

The EU suggested designing ARD definitions specifically for
the purpose of implementing Article 3.3, and the UK raised the
possibility of customizing the IPCC scenarios. CANADA
preferred land-based accounting and noted that Article 3.4 repre-
sents an opportunity to deal with sinksin acomprehensive and
symmetrical way. He advocated a combined approach to Article
3.3and 3.4. BOLIVIA said an appropriate accounting scheme
would also be applicable under Articles6 and 12. BRAZIL saidthe
definition of aforest for the purposes of Article 3.3 should be
linked to thresholds for the variable tonnes of carbon per hectare.
AUSTRALIA raised theissue of spatial and temporal discontinui-
tiesunder Article 3.3 and the need to avoid perverseincentives. He
called for further devel opment of measurement techniquesfor the
land-use change sector, noting the omission of this sector in the
IPCC good practice guidance.

Ontheway forward after SB-12, the G-77/CHINA, supported
by AOSIS, cautioned against using a*“fast track”, highlighting that
he did not consider it to be part of the BAPA.

ADVERSE EFFECTS: On 10 June, Co-Chair Salamat
summarized issuesraised in submissions and called on del egatesto
identify additional issues and comment on the need for and nature
of future meetings.

JAPAN underlined theimportance of recognizing past support
for adaptation and, with MOZAMBIQUE, highlighted institutional
and managerial capacity building, and training for vulnerability
assessments and response measures. The EU highlighted moni-
toring and research, the importance of dialogue between donors
and recipients and, withthe NETHERLANDS, providing for adap-
tation within national and sectoral strategies. The UK and US
emphasized theidentification and eval uation of adaptation options.
SAUDI ARABIA and the US, opposed by SWITZERLAND, high-
lighted provision for CO2 sequestration technol ogies.
AUSTRALIA underlined therole of sinks. BELIZE called for
immediate adaptation measures. BRAZIL, with JAMAICA, under-
scored therole of regional climate change models. NIGERIA
emphasized accessto information technol ogy, including telecom-
munications.

On future meetings, AOSI S emphasi zed the val ue of regional
workshops and the need for coordination of FCCC workshops and
meetings. SENEGA L proposed aworkshop on |east devel oped
countries. ZIMABABWE proposed aworkshop to examinethe
role of insurance. JAPAN highlighted resource constraintsfor
intersessional meetings. SAUDI ARABIA proposed aworkshop
on the nature and implication of Annex | Parties' P& Ms, aswell as
oneon Protocol Article 3.14. SWITZERLAND, JAPAN and others
said theissue of workshopswould be addressed during SB-12.

The G-77/CHINA, supported by SAUDI ARABIA, SOUTH
AFRICA and others, and opposed by SWITZERLAND, expressed
preference for separate draft decisions, one on FCCC Article 4.8
and 4.9, and another on Protocol Article 3.14. Co-Chair Salamat
noted that the draft decision will have three distinct parts without
prejudiceto SBSTA-12 discussions.

IN THE CORRIDORS

While most participants|eft theweek of informal meetingswith
thefeeling that they had successfully moved discussionsforward
on several key issues, some sessions ended on adlightly sour note.
Attempts by some Chairsto present draft decisions or negotiating
text met with confusion over the extent of the meetings’ mandate,
and sparked what some observers saw as political posturing that
contrasted with the generally constructive and open dialogue.
While there was agreement on devel oping consolidated text for
mechanisms and adverse effects, EU delegates were disappointed
when attemptsto devel op anegotiating text on policiesand
measures for adecision at COP-6 were stonewalled by some G-77
countries|ate Friday afternoon.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

SBSTA: SBSTA will meet at 10:00amin Plenary Il to consider
LULUCEF, Protocol Articles5, 7 and 8, national greenhouse gas
inventoriesand the status of the consultative process on technol ogy
transfer. An elaborated draft text on Article 8 isavailabletoday.

SBI: SBI will meet at 10:00 amin Plenary | and is expected to
address Annex | and non-Annex | national communications, and
the financial mechanism.

JOINT SBI/SBSTA: A joint SBI/SBSTA meeting will
conveneat 3:00 pmin Plenary | to consider adverse effects,
compliance, and the mechanisms. Draft consolidated textson
mechani sms and compliance and aconsolidated text on adverse
effectsare available today.



